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They were well worth taking care of. The workhouse could not by
any means always get hold of them, and if they were allowed to grow
up untrained and uncared for they would become a great source of evil
and of danger to Church and State.

The Dean of Rochester presided, last week, at the Church House, at
the annual meeting of the Church Society for the Promotion of Kindness
to Animals. The report was adopted and ordered to be printed on the
motion of the Rev. H. Glover, vicar of Addiscombe, seconded by the
Rev. J. Ker, rector of St. Catherine’s, Ontario. A new mode of pre-
paring animals for slaughter was described. Mr. C. F. Darn exhibited
diagrams of improved cattle trucks. Prizes were presented to the
writers of the best essays from various London schools. A vote of
thanks was accorded to the Chairman on the motion of Mr. Vaughan,
supported by the Rev. S. Buss, and presented by Mr. Joseph Darton.

REVIEWS.

W hy We are Churchmen : some Plain Reasons. By A. L.
Oldham, M.A. With Preface by Principal Edgar C. S. Gibson.
(London: Rivington, Percival, & Co. 1894. 2s. 6d. Second edition,

revised,)—A simple, straightforward defence of the English Church
position as against Rome, on the one hand, and Dissent, on the other.
The chapter on the Reformation and the Roman mission is very well
done.

Let us Draw Nigh. By Rev. Andrew Murray. (London: Nisbot.
1895. Is.)—Reprinted from the larger work, The Holiest of All, which
we reviewed favourably some short time ago. It contains the section
on Heb. x. 19-25, and aims at finding 1a way to a life abiding con-
tinually in the secret of God’s presence.’

Religio Clerici,and other Poems. By Alfred Starkey. (London:
Elliot Stock, 1895.)— These three poems are distinctly good. The
major one deals with the world-old problem of the conflict between
good and evil, and deals with it in the light of modern knowledge,
fighting its darker problems and issues until the answer of faith is
reached, and we can see how

‘Thou dost convert

Ev’n Nature’s self to Thy most beauteous sway;

Her sighs are but the preludes of Thy songs,

Her storms are but the heralds of Thy peace ;

Thy mercy follows and binds up her wounds.

Thy resolution of her discords makes

Her sweetest strains ; Thy golden consequence

W aits to transmute her leaden purposes !’
The resetting of the ‘Prioress’s Tale, and ‘Ad Amicos,’
well worth reading.

are equally

Evangelium in Evangelio; or,the Moral History of a Sinful
Soul. "By W. H. Ford, vicar of Monyash. (London : S.P.C.K.
1895. 6d.)—A brief and telling exposition of the parable of the Prodigal
Son.

V e have received a second edition of Reason and Religion ; on,
By the Rev. Dr. R, E.
2s. 6d.)

Christianity.
189-3,

the Leading Doctrines of
Hooppell. (London: Henry Froude,

The twenty-second volume of Great Thoughts (London: A. W.
Hall. is. ea.) is a handsome volume, and contains a large variety of
reading in addition to two complete stories, one of them from the pen of
Grant Allen and the other by Madame Coulin. Among”the remainder
of the diversified contents, we notice the interesting twentieth-centurv
symposium to which reference has been made in our columns,’and the
chatty notes which appear under the heading, ‘By-way Philosophy.
The plates given with the monthly parts are bound up with the volume,
which is well suited for a gift to any one fond of general reading.

The People’sLife of William Ewart Gladstone. (London:
Cassells.)—An illustrated popular sketch of the life of this famous
statesman.

MAGAZINES.

In the Thinker we have, in addition to very good summaries of
current American, Canadian, German and Swiss thought, two thoughtful
papers, one on ‘Our Lord’s Teachingon Prayer' by Prof. W. G. Blaikie,
and the others by Principal E. EImer Harding on ‘The Inspiration and
Preservation of the Holy Scriptures.’

The Clergyman’s Magazine contains the sixth of Archdeacon
Sinclair s sketches of ‘Leaders of Thought in the English Church,’dealing
with ‘John Wesley, the Evangelist of the Masses.’

We_always look to the E xpository Times to keep us up to date in
theological matters, and it never fails us. The ‘Notes of Recent
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Exposition ’ deal with. Prof. Flinders Petrie’s new History of Egypt
—awonderful book—with the parable of the Good Samaritan, with the
new Codex Ludovicus (so gently handled as to the editing, but necessary
all the same), and with the ‘ Three Rains of Palestine.” Then Prof. J. T.
Marshall deals admirably with Resch’s recent treatment of the
‘Trinitarian Baptismal Formula/ and the whole number is worth reading
from cover to cover.

Prof.Ince in the Expositor,in common with many others just
now, writes on the “*Miraculous Conception and Virgin Birth of Christ.’
The treatment is sound but not quite adequate to all the difficulties of
the problem. Prof. Swete enlightens us considerably as to St. Jerome
on the Psalms, and Canon Cheyne for once is acceptable on the develop-
ment of the meanings of *Belial.” For the rest, the Rev. T, G. Selby o1
‘Our Lord’s ldeal of Prayer/ Mr. J. Rendel Harris on ‘A New
Patristic Fragment/ and the Rev. Il. Burton on ‘The Breakfast on the
Shore ’fill up a good number.

Chapman’s Magazine lias, we are glad to say, the edges cut, The
promise of the first number is maintained. There are further instal-
mento'Of Bret Harte and Violet Hunt’s serial stories; George IraBrett’s
detective tale is concluded, and there are among the complete stories
contributions from George Gissing, S. R, Crockett, and Frank Stockton.

The Churchman includes a very interesting paper by the editor ou
‘Dean Boyle’s Reminiscences/ and Canon Jenkins contemplates and
criticises the Pope’s letter. The drift, indeed, .is all against Leo XIII.,
until the reader is almost disposed to take the part of his Holiness.

The Net, though ‘cast in many waters/ is the special magazine of
the Mission to Zululaud, founded in 1870 by Miss Anne Mackenzie as a
memorial of her brother, the first Bishop of the Universities’ Mission to
Central Africa. This mission occupies fifteen stations, eleven in Zulu-
land, one in Swaziland, and three in the Transvaal. In the list of
missionaries on the cover, we are glad to see that one name, which was
very prominent in the early days of the mission, that of the Rev. R.
Robertson, is on the list still. The contents of the magazine are varied
and interesting as usual.

BELLS AND BELL-RINGING.

The Herts Association.
A District Meeting Will be held at Bnshey (where the bells have been
rehung) on Saturday, June 22nd. Farther particulars next week.
E. P. Debenham: Hon. Sec.

The Salisbury Diocesan
The annual meeting of the Salisbury Diocesan Guild was held on
Monday, May_13th, at Warminster. The proceedings commenced with
Divine service in the Minster, when a sermon was preached by the Bev. J. F,
Welsh. The business meeting was subsequently held in the schoolroom,
the Rev. A. D. Hill presiding. The following were the officers elected for
the ensuing year :—Master, the Bev. A. D. Hill; treasurer, Mr. W. Pinckney;
secretary for Wilts, the Bev. C. W. Hony; secretary for Dorset, the Bev.
F. H. Fisher; assistant secretary (Dorset), Mr. A. Grist; bon. auditor, Mr.
W. W. Gifford. The Chairman explained that Mr. Jerram, their general
secretary, wished to resign, and Mr. Jerram having stated that he had
already explained his reasons for resigning at the committee meeting on
February 6th last, asked to be allowed to nominate Mr. Thomas Blackbourn
as his successor. This was seconded by Mr. J. Short and carried unani-
mously. The following were elected to represent the Guild on the National
Central Council:—Mr. Thomas Blackbourn, Bev. A. D. Hill, and Mr. A.
Smith (Longbridge Deverill). The election of the committee was then pro-
ceeded with. Eight names were proposed for seven seats, and upon a show
of hands the following were declared elected :—Mr. J. R. Jerram, the Bev.
C. Myers, Mr. F. C. Myers, Mr. F. Rigden, Mr. S. Macey, Mr. J. Judd, Mr.
A. Smith, and the Bev. J. E. G. Bond. The annual dinner took place in
the Town Hall at two p.m., when the chair was occupied by the Bev. Canon
Sir J. E. Phillips, vicar of Warminster. About 120 members sat down.
After dinner the usual toasts were proposed and responded to. A hearty
vote of thanks was accorded to the preacher (the Rev. J. F. Welsh) and also
to Mr. J. B. Jerram for the valuable services rendered the Guild during the
past eight years. Binging took place during the afternoon at Warminster,
Longbridge Deverill, and Horningsham. The following were the companies
represented :(—Salisbury St. Thomas, Salisbury St. Edmund, Salisbury St.
Martin, Ebbesborne Wake, Longbridge Deverill, Maiden Bradley, South
Newton, Great Bedwyn, Warminster, Barford St. Martin, Mildenhall, Caine,
Westbury, Dinton, Overton, and Seend.

Guild of Bell-ringers.

The Lancashire Association of Change-ringers.

On Saturday evening, the 18th ult., the half-yearly meeting of ike
members of the Lancashire Association was held in St. Cuthbert’s Parish
Church Boys’ School, Lytham. The Association now consists of seven
branches—Manchester, Liverpool Diooesan, Fylde District, Rochdale, Black-
burn, Preston, and Bossendale; and there were representatives from ea:k
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present. During the day touches were rung on the bells at St. Cuthbert’s,
St. John’s, and St. Peter’s, Lytham, and at St. Anne’s-on-the-Sea Parish
Church. The Bev. P. G. Harris, of Lytham, occupied the chair at the
meeting, and there were also present the Bev. H. J. Elsee (President)-, Mr.
W. P. Fullagar, Mr. Needham, Dr. Slater, Mr. J. Fell (Hon. Sec. to the
Fylde Branch), &c. The Bev. H. J. Elsee said there was not any very
special business to bring before the meeting. He was glad to see so good an
attendance, and explained how it had been decided to hold one half-yearly
meeting, instead of three quarterly ones as before. The ‘notes’ which he
had prepared on the different methods would, he hoped, be included in the
nextreport. It had been decided that in future half the expenses incurred
by the branch secretaries should be defrayed by the Association. Mr. Need-
ham, on behalf of the Vicar and wardens of St. John’s, welcomed all the
party to Lytham, and expressed the pleasure he felt at seeing them on that
occasion. Several new members of the Association were elected (including
Dr. Slater). Other business connected with the Association was transacted,
and the proceedings closed with a vote of thanks to the chairman for
presiding, and to the vicars and the church officers of the various churches
for the use of the hells.

St. Saviour's Church Bells, Oxton, Cheshire.

On the evening of Ascension Day (the 23rd ult.), a special service was
held at St. Saviour’s, Oxton, to dedicate the new ring of bells recently placed
in the tower by the generosity of Mr. Edmund Taylor, J.P., of Oxton.

The bells were made by Messrs. John Taylor & Sons, Loughborough, and
the following are the dimensions and weights:—m

Diameter.
ft. ina. Note. cwt. qi\ Ibs.
Treble.. 2 6 E .. G 0 7
2nd.. 2 7 ‘6 118
3rd .. 2 9 . 7 1 6
4th 2 11 e B 8 110
5th 3 Q4 e A 9 217
6th 3 11 0 0
7th... 3 .14 01 22
Tenor 4 1 s B 20 1 16
Total... .. 83 2 12

The framework is of cast iron of the latest design, and is bolted to heavy
steel girders, which are well braced together to prevent lateral motion. The
total weight of the bells, fittings, and framework, is about 17 to 18 tons. A
speciality of the fittings are the iron headstocks, which are bored and fitted
with steel gudgeons.

The Bishop of Chester preached the sermon. The other clergymen
present were the Bev. P. C.Bobin (vicar), G. W. Fidlin (curate), H. E. Nixon
(chaplain, All Saints’), and A. Slowman (Birkenhead School). The Bev. H.
E. Nixon officiated as the Bishop’s staff-bearer. After evensong to the third
collect, a special service of praise followed, including the chanting of Psalm
cl.,and anumber of prayers by the Bishop with special reference to the belis,
the church, the ringers, and those who came within the sound of the bells.
Immediately after these prayers had been offered the lingers (members of the
W irral Branch of the Chester Diocesan Guild of Church Bell-ringers, from
Bromborough, Bebington, and West Kirby towers) rang a short touch. The
Bishop preached from the text, Numb, x., 1and 2. After the service a
quarter-peal was rung on the hells, the harmonious sounds, from the elevated
position of the church, travelling far and wide over the surrounding district.

The Eastern Counties’ Guild.

The above-named Guild held its annual meeting at Spalding on Bank
Holiday, the Ely District Association amalgamating with it on this occasion.
The day’s proceedings were opened with a date touch of 1895 Geandsire
Tkiptes, by the Spalding company, at the Parish Church, followed by some
touches of Kk ent and Oxford Treble Bob at St. Paul’s, Fulney. A shortened
service was held at SS. Mary and Nicholas’, with address by the Bev. W.
Disney, who took for his text the words, 10ur duty.” The singing of the
well-known W hitsuntide hymns was grand.

After service, the members adjourned to Host Barker’s for dinner, which
was served in excellent style. The usual loyal toasts having been given, the
Hon. Lay Secretary, Mr. W. G. Cross, read the minutes of the previous
meeting, which wereconfirmed. The following officers were then elected :—
Patron, the Lord Bishop of Lincoln ; President, Bev. F. F. Wayet (vicar of
Pinchbeck ; Vice-Presidents, Canon Hemans (rector of Holbeach) and the
Bev. J. B. Jackson (vicar of Moulton); Clerical Secretary, Bev. W. Disney;
Lay Secretary, Mr. W. G. Cross. Several honorary and ringing members
were elected. The Kev. W. Disney gave an outline of the expenditure of the
Guild during the past year, also a list of all contributions paid, the books
being open to the members for inspection.

It should he noted that among the members of the Ely Association
present were :—Bevs. E. J. Teesdale, of Bougham, Hon. Secretary; W. W.
Crump and J. E. Curtols, of Hemingford Grey ; Messrs. A. Markwell,
Wilburton ; A. Pilgrim, Ely; G. Taylor, Cambridge; &c. The Eastern
Counties’ Guild members present were :—J. S. Wright and B. Mackman,
Spalding ; W. Wright and H. Hill, Walpole St. Peter; F. Easton, Terring-
ton; G. Ladd, Pinchbeck ; and others. Just before the members left for
lhe respective towers, the Bev. E. J. Teesdale thanked the E.C.G. members
for the invitation to the Ely Association, and said that he hoped before long
the two Associations would meet again. Several good touches of Bob
Major, and Kent and Oxford Treble Bob were brought round during the
day, also several six-scores of Grandsire Doubles at Pinchbeck.

(For remainder of Bell-ringing see page 548.)
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The Contents of the June Number include—
STREET FOLK AND CRIES OF OLD LONDON. (lllustrated).
THE OXFORD COLLEGES. <Corpus Christi and Jesus. (lllustrated).
CYRUS, THE LORD'S SHEPHERD. (lllustrated).
DEAR ANGELS UNAWARES. By Constance E. Thomas. (lllustrated).
JOHN STOW. An Old-time Chronicler. By Wm. Andrews, F.R.H.S. (lllus).
HOLY TRUTHS. The Holt Bible. By Canon Body, D.D.

12 Southampton Street, Strand, London, W.C.

CONGREVES
BALSAMIC ELIXIR

THE GRAND OLD REMEDY E,OR CHEST DISEASES.
(IN USE FROM THE YEAR 1826.)
This splendid medicine should be in every household.

ON THE FIRST SYMPTOMS OF A COLD

a good dose of the BALSAMIC ELIXIR will frequently carry it off before it
becomes settled or merges into Influenza. At tbe first

SUSPICION OF INFLUENZA

take it as a preventative.

Rev. F. E. Heafb, of Derby, in a recent letter to Mr. Congreve, says

1Your medicine always puts my lungs right, and d/rove out the terrible
INFLUENZA last May. In Cases of

COUGHS, AND BRONCHIAL AFFECTIONS

Persevere with this medicine, and you can hardly fail to get relieved.

MINISTERS and PUBLIC SPEAKERS should note that it is
SPLENDID FOR THE VOICE,

and asa Preventative op Cold to speakers going oat in all weathers. WARM
AND COMFORTING AND VERY PLEASANT taken on a small lump or two
of sugar in the way of a loienge.

To be had of all Medicine Vendors in bottles at Is. Ijd., 2s. 9L, 4s, 61, and
family bottles at 11s. and 52s.

Office ;

T H E

HALF-GUINEA COSTUMES

NEW REGISTERED DESIGN.
Direct from the Largrest Firm of Costume Manufacturers in the World, s*
less than Half Ordinary Prices. Over 1000 Workers Employed.

WRECK OP THE *‘ELSE
And Loss of 335 Lives.

MISS ANNA BOECKEB, the only Mdy
survivor, was at the tune of the catastrophe, wearing
a_Costume made from the JOHN NOBLE
CHEVIOT SERGE, and though immersed five
hoursin sea water, the Costume hasnotshrunk, nor
does it appear much worse for the severe exposure.
This Costume is now being exhibited in the show win-
dow of our establishment, 11 Piccadilly; Manchester.

Highest Diploma and Gold
Medal Awarded atthe British
and Colonial Industrial
Exhibition, Manchester,
October 1894.

1

These Costumes are made in Ttie John ile
Cheviot Serge in Black, Navy, Brown, Myrtie,
Bronze-Green, Ruby, Tan, Grey, or Drab; and sup-
plied complete for the ridiculous price of
each, packed in leather board box, and sent
carriage paid for 9d. extra. The sizes kept in
stock will fit any figure up to 38 inches round
the bust under arms, but larger or special sizes
can be made to order at a cost of 1/6 extra.

The John Noble Half-Guinea Costumes, the
most remarkable ever produced, have created a
complete revolution in the cost of garments for
Ladies* wear, and have secured, beyond a doubt,

The Admiration of the World.

The present Design excels all previous
ones in every respect. The style is better, the
cut is superior, and the make and finish beyond
all criticism, thus adding in a triple degree to
the already marvellous value of these costumes,
which are trimmed with fine silk cord, and are
worn in every part of the civilised world. The

JOHN NOBLE CHEVIOT SERGE

(Regd.), is a fabric of great durability and

world-wide fame. It is 52 inches wide, does

not spot with rain, and may be washed

whenever necessary- Colours—

Navy,Brown,Myrtle, m / Bronze-

Green, Ruby, Grey, Drab, Tan, or Black.

Every reader can secure a Full Dress Length

of SIX YARDS, for 7/6. Sent carriage paid for 9d. extra.

W T Patterns,also Illustrated ‘Book of the Serge” and Fashion 5h~*=* :: -
Ladies and Children’swear, sentpostfree to any reader of c\ Agtesliiru -a

JOHN NOBLE, MANCHESTER.



54®

The Society of St. Patrick’s Bell-ringers, Coleraine, Ireland.

The second annual meeting of the above Society was held on Tuesday
evening, the 14th ult., when a good attendance of members testified to their
interest in the Society’s welfare. The chair was taken by the Eev. A. J.
Moore (President), who in a short address urged upon the members the im-
portance of practising. The secretary’s and treasurer’s reports having been
submitted, the following were elected officers for the ensuing yearCon -
ductors, Messrs. J. Irwin, R. Barr, and T. McLaughlin; Secretary, Mr. J.
Bishop ; and Treasurer, Mr, T. P. Gorman. At the conclusion of business
the Rector (Rev. A. J. Moore) hospitably entertained those present to supper,
and an enjoyable evening was brought to a close by the singing of the
doxology.

St. Mary’s, Stafford, Bell-ringers’ Supper.

The third annual supper to the members of the St. Mary’s Guild of Bell-
ringers took place on a recent Tuesday evening, at the Swan Hotel. The
funds were, as usual, provided by subscriptions collected by Mr. P. H.
Harston, who has always taken a warm and practical interest in this annual
gathering, the origin of which is mainly due to his exertions, The Mayor
(Mr. C. H. Wright) presided, and Mr. Harston occupied the vice-chair. The
toast of ‘Church and Queen’ was proposed from the chair and loyally re-
ceived, and replied to by the Rector (the Rev. D. R. Norman). The Mayor
also submitted the health of the Rector and churchwardens, which was
heartily welcomed and duly acknowledged. The toast of ‘Success to St.
Mary’s Bell-ringers’ Guild * was next proposed by tbe Mayor, and Messrs. T.
Guest (captain) and T. A. Lea replied. Mr. Churchwarden Averill, in sub-
mitting ‘The \isitors,’ referred to the fact that Dr. C. Reid had presented a
guinea to be devoted to the purchase of books of instruction for the ringers,
this being one of several requirements indispensable in the belfry. During
the evening various short touches, comprising several methods, were suc-
cessfully given with the handbells by the band of ten ringers.

Diocesan Association of Change-ringers.

The Bath and Wells

A quarterty meeting of this Association was held at Yeovil on Saturday,
the 18th inst., when, in addition to the local ringers, members were present
from Bath, Bristol, Wells, Frome, Taunton, Minehead, Dunster, and Old
Cleeve. A short service was held in the church, conducted by the Vicar
(the Bsv. Dr. Beebe). The Eev. H. C. Courtney, of Minehead, read the
special lesson, and the Master (the Eev. C. W. H. Griffith) founded an
earnest address on Eom. sii, 5. After service, an adjournment was made to
the belfry, where the business meeting was held, the Master presiding.

The Hon. Secretary and Treasurer (Mr. H. W. Tomkins, of Old Cleeve)
produced the minutes of the last meeting, which were confirmed. It was
announced that the annual meeting would take place at Wells in July or
August next. The fixing of the exact date was left in the hands of the
Master and Secretary after communicating with the Bishop, who has kindly
promised” to address the members on that occasion if his engagements
permit him. Several new members were elected. It was decided,0on the
proposition of Mr. W. W. Thorne, to erect a peal-board in the belfries at
Milverton and Drayton (subject to the approval of the Vicars), to com-
memorate tim first peals rung by members of the Association on the bells,
Ilhe preparation of the peal-boards was entrusted to Mr. T. Doble, of
Taunton. The Hon. Secretary reported that he was in communication with
the Great Western Railway Company relative to the issue of cheap tickets
to members attending meetings of the Association in the diocese.

Mr. C. E. D. Boutflower, of Bristol, referred to the Bill’now before
Parliament for tbhe Disestablishment and Disendowment of the Church in
Wales, and said he believed that if such a measure became law it would be
but a matter of time before a similar attack would be made upon the Church
in England. He pointed out the consequences that would follow upon
ringers and change-ringing throughout the country, and said it behoved
them to do their utmost to prevent such a measure from becoming law

On the proposition of the Eev. H. C. Courtney, a hearty vote of thanks
was accorded the Vicar and rmgers for the use of the church and bells and
for toe cordial welcome extended to the members of the Association The
members, twenty-two in number, subsequently sat down to a capital’ knife-
and-iork tea at the Albany Hotel. During the afternoon touches of Grand
sire and Stedsian Trifles and Caters were rung on the bells.

The Eev. C. W. H. Griffith, senior curate of St. Mary’s, Bathwick and
Master of the Bath and Wells Diocesan Association of Change-ringers has
been presented by the Eev. Edward Handley, to the Eectory of Winthorpe

REGISTERED PATTERNS

CAST IRON CRAVE MEMORIALS
WITH SELF-FIXING e Jo— >
BASES T |
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Notts, in the diocese of Southwell. Mr. Griffith, who is a gradiiate of
Corpus College, Oxford, was ordained in 1886 by the Bishop of Worcester,
when he was licensed to the curacy of St. Michael’s, Coventry, which he held
for two years. He has been curate of Bathwick since 1888. Hs has
occupied the position of Master of the Diocesan Association of Change-
ringers since its formation in 1890. His genial bearing and never-failing
good humour have made him many friends amongst ringers, and whilst
they will be glad to hear of his well-deserved preferment, they will at the
same time be sorry to lose one who has done so much for ringers and
change-ringing throughout the diocese.

The Late Squire Proctor and the Society of Royal Cumberland Youths,

On Friday evening, March 29th, at the usual practice, a half-muffled peal
was rung by members of this Society at the Church of St. Martin’s-in-the
Fields, as a token of respect to the memory of the above-mentioned cele-
brated ringer, who had been a member of the above Society for just upon
sixty-nine years. The performance took place amid the solemnity befitting
the occasion, which consisted of the usual whole-pull-and-stand, and was
followed by touches of Stedsian Cinques.

As has been truly stated more than once, the Squire was at the head of
fhe pioneer band of Surprise method ringers, and this band for many years
would ring Superlative, Cambridge, and London Surprise, AC., for Divine
service on Sundays at Bennington, Herts, just as regularly as other bands
would ring plain methods.

AThirty, forty, and fifty years ago the Squire was not an infrequent
visitor to his London friends. The late J. Miller was, perhaps, one of the
most prominent of these, and this gentleman would often be commissioned
to take a band of Londoners to meet the Squire for a day’s ringing in the
country.® Afterwards, J. E. Haworth took J. Miller’s place. He had known
the Squire many years, having been at Bennington in 1839, and rang
Grandsire Caters With him at St. Martin’s-in-the-Fields about 1810.

His name, it is thought, should be perpetuated in some befitting way,
and the Central Council is going the right way in such a direction by taking
this matter in hand.

As almost everything is interesting concerning the early doings of such
an old veteran ringer as the late Squire, the following has been extracted
from the records of the Society above-mentioned to show the date of member-
ship, &a. —m

The Autograph and Name Book: ‘Leonard Proctor, 1836.” Peal Book,
No. 2 : 10n January 30th, 1838, at Bennington, Hertfordshire, the following
members of this Society rang a peal of Grandsike Triptes, 2 hours 50
minutes, containing 5010 changes, on the bells of this church. Edward
Giles, Treble; Charles Wilson, 2; William Lobb, 3; John Whiting, 1;
Wi illiam Ludpid, 5; William Killick, 6 ; A. G. Frost, 7; Leonard Proctor,
Tenor. Conducted by Edmond Giles.”

The Bells of Ail Souls’, Halifax, Yorks.

Between 401 and 501 have been received towards the amount required
for the renovation of this splendid peal, and instructions have been given to
Messrs. Mears, of London, the founders of the bells, to put them into proper
repair. The bells are bung in solid frames of English oak, and the following
are the weights and musical notes Tenor bell, 25 ewt. 1 qr. 1 1b., D ; 7th°
17 cwt. 1 qr. 18 Ibs., E ; 6th, 13 cwt. 2 qrs. 3 Ibs., F sharp ; 5th, 12 cwt.
6 Ibs., G; 4th, 9 cwt. 3 grs. lib,, A; 3rd, 8 cwt. 1qr. 19 Ibs., B ; 2nd,
7cwt. 1 gr. 81bs., C sharp ; treble, 7 cwt.,, D. Total weight of peal, 100 cwt.
2 grs. 23 Ibs. The arms of the church are cast on the tenor bell, and the
inscription is as follows “All Souls’ Church, Halifax, founded by Edward
Akroyd, Ad. 1859. “ Let all souls praise the Lord.”™

At St. Gregory's, Sudbury, Suffolk.—On Saturday, the 25tli ult., the
following members of the Sudbury Company rang a touch of 720 Double
Norwich Court Major. F. ToIIiday, 1; W. Howell, 2 ; J. Campin, 3; M.
Silvester, 4; W. Bacon, 5; A. Scott, 6; W. Howell, sen., 7; C. Sillitoe
(conductor), 8. This is the longest touch ever rung in Sudbury in this intricate
method, and also the longest rung by all the above except the conductor.

Mb. Gradstone has given a bell to the new oliapel of Selwyn College,
Cambridge. Mr. Gladstone was a schoolfellow at Eton and a great friend
of the late Bishop Selwyn, in whose memory the College was founded.

MEARS AND STAINBANK,

WHITECHAPEL BELL FOUNDRY,

Supply and Erect Peals of Church Bells with usual

Towers Inspected,
Bells Rehung, Tuned, or Recast.
HOUR AND QUARTER BULLS,

267 WHITECHAPEL ROAD, LONDON, E.

VERY APPROPRIATE FOR CHURCHYABBS AND CEMSTERIES

WALTER.F.JOHNS ON BANK BUILDINGS LEICESTER
>H3C«lY?2"NSAGECAS tetf?’HSGNC %5ESE THSI. SITEIEGACNOT B5 EF/ACS93Y Titt*

Fittings and Frames.

Frames restored, or adapted for enlarging a Peal,
Fittings renewed, Musical Hand-bells,
SCHOOL BULLS AS SUPPLIED TO THE LONDON SCHOOL BOARD,

Established 157o0.



